



IAN DAVIDSON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, ESSEX, CO15 1SE. TELEPHONE (01255) 686868

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: Monday, 9 May 2022

TIME: 7.30 pm

VENUE: Committee Room - Town Hall,

Station Road, Clacton-on-Sea, CO15

1SE

MEMBERSHIP:

Councillor Chittock
Councillor S Honeywood
Councillor Clifton
Councillor Codling
Councillor Codling
Councillor Davidson
Councillor Codling
Councillor Codling
Councillor Codling
Councillor Steady

Most Council meetings are open to the public and press. The space for the public and press will be made available on a first come first served basis. Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date and the Council aims to publish Minutes within five working days of the meeting. Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, or on disc, tape, or in other languages.

This meeting will be filmed by the Council for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the Council's website. The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on the website for up to 24 months (the Council retains one full year of recordings and the relevant proportion of the current Municipal Year). The Council will seek to avoid/minimise footage of members of the public in attendance at, or participating in the meeting.In addition, the Council is obliged by law to allow members of the public to take photographs, film, audio-record, and report on the proceedings at public meetings. The Council will only seek to prevent this should it be undertaken in a disruptive or otherwise inappropriate manner.

If you have any queries regarding webcasting or the recording of meetings by the public, please contact Democratic Services on democraticservices@tendringdc.gov.uk

Chief Executive lan Davidson

www.tendringdc.gov.uk Minicom: 01255 475566

DATE OF PUBLICATION: Thursday, 28 April 2022

AGENDA

1 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

The Committee is asked to note any apologies for absence and substitutions received from Members of the Committee.

2 <u>Minutes of the Last Meeting</u> (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm and sign as a correct record, the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee, held on 21 March 2022.

3 <u>Declarations of Interest</u>

Councillors are invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Personal Interest, and the nature of it, in relation to any item on the agenda.

4 Questions on Notice pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 38

Subject to providing two working days' notice, a Member of the Committee may ask the Chairman of the Committee a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties which affect the Tendring District <u>and</u> which falls within the terms of reference of the Committee.

5 <u>Freeport East proposals and Development Plans to deliver the proposals</u> (Pages 5 - 10)

The Committee will enquire into the progress of the Freeport East Proposals, the opportunities this proposal may offer for the District and how these can be harnessed. The enquiry will be supported by the Corporate Director for Projects and Delivery who has provided a report attached

Date of the Next Scheduled Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Community Leadership Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to be held in the Committee Room - Town Hall, Station Road, Clacton-on-Sea, CO15 1SE at 7.30 pm on Tuesday, 28 June 2022.

Information for Visitors

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE

There is no alarm test scheduled for this meeting. In the event of an alarm sounding, please calmly make your way out of any of the fire exits in the hall and follow the exit signs out of the building.

Please heed the instructions given by any member of staff and they will assist you in leaving the building and direct you to the assembly point.

Please do not re-enter the building until you are advised it is safe to do so by the relevant member of staff.

Your calmness and assistance is greatly appreciated.



Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Community Leadership Overview and Scrutiny Committee

21 March 2022

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE.

HELD ON MONDAY, 21ST MARCH, 2022 AT 7.30 PM IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM - TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, CO15 1SE

Present:	Councillors Chittock (Chairman), Baker, Chapman BEM, Clifton, Codling, Davidson and Steady
Also Present:	Councillor Ivan Henderson (Leader of the Labour Group) and Councillor Lynda McWilliams (Portfolio Holder for Partnerships)
In Attendance:	Anastasia Simpson (Assistant Director (Partnerships)), Keith Simmons (Head of Democratic Services and Elections), Hattie Dawson-Dragisic (Performance and Business Support Officer) and Matt Cattermole (Communications Assistant)

[Also in Attendance: Councillor Miles, Anita Patel-Lingam (Statutory Education Compliance Manager, Essex County Council), Michael O'Brien (Head of Specialist Education Services, Essex County Council) [these persons attended via Microsoft Teams]]

45. VICE-CHAIRMAN

Upon being moved by Councillor Clifton and seconded by Councillor Davidson, it was **RESOLVED** that Councillor Steady be elected Vice-Chairman of the Committee for the remainder of this current Municipal Year.

46. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors Miles (substituted by Councillor Baker), Nash (no substitution) and Skeels (no substitution).

47. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

It was **RESOLVED** that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on Monday 31 January 2022 be approved as a correct record.

48. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest by Councillors in relation to any item on the agenda for this meeting.

49. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38

On this occasion no Councillor had submitted notice of a question.

50. A.1 SCRUTINY OF PROPOSED DECISIONS

The Committee was advised of three proposed decisions by Cabinet in the coming period. One of these concerned Freeport East Business Case which would be within the scope of the Committee's enquiry into Freeport East scheduled for the provisional

meeting on 9 May 2022. The Committee **NOTED** the contents of the report and decided not to amend the work programme based on this report.

51. A.2 RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING REPORT

The Committee was advised of the responses from Cabinet in respect of its recommendations from 27 September 2021 (Minute 12), 10 January 2022 (Minute 33 and 34). The Committee **NOTED** the contents of the report and decided that the issue of Housing and Homelessness should be provisionally added as an item for enquiry in 2022/23.

52. A.3 REVIEW OF THE WORK PROGRAMME

Further to Minutes 33 and 34 above, the committee was advised of its forthcoming enquiry into Freeport and the need to commence a process to identify the enquiries for the Work Programme 2022/23. In respect of undertaking enquiries in 2022/23 the Committee was made aware that proposed dates for this Committee to meet in 2022/23 would be considered at Annual Council and the emphasis would be on enquiries task and finish groups. This was recommended after the CFGS being undertaken in scrutiny review in 2021 workshop.

The Committee was also reminded that it had decided to have two Joint Scrutiny Panel with the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Chairmen of this Committee and the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee have met recently to agree a process to take these forward.

It was **RESOLVED TO NOTE** the work programme report and that the process for developing the work programme for 2022/23 would commence in the next few weeks.

53. A.4 CHILDREN MISSING EDUCATION

The Chairman reminded the Committee that Council had requested an enquiry be undertaken into the safeguarding and education position concerning those of school age attending mainstream schools. In undertaking the enquiry the council had identified those who were to be invited as being representatives of Essex County Council, Local Academy Trust representatives, representatives of Alternative Education Providers and organisations mentoring or support for those not in mainstream education.

A report was submitted to the meeting identified that representatives of Essex County Council had been invited to attend remotely and present to the meeting. The report identified some information concerning those missing from education and also information on those children who were missing from home.

From Essex County Council, Anita Patel-Lingam, Statutory Education Compliance Manager and Michael O'Brien, Head of Specialist Education Services, joined the meeting using MS Teams and presented slides that included detail on the subject of the enquiry.

The Members were advised of the potential impacts, suggested by research, of children missing school:

- Slower progress in learning
- Worse Prospects for future employment
- Poorer mental health and emotional well-being
- Restricted social and emotional development and
- Increased vulnerability to safeguarding issues and criminal exploitation

The Committee was also informed which children that are more at risk of missing education:

- Children at risk of harm/neglect
- Children of Gypsy, Roma and Traveller families
- Families of Armed Forces
- Missing Children/runaways
- Children and young people supervised by the Youth Justice System
- Children who cease to attend a school

The Essex County Council officers advised members of figures within Essex and specifically in Tendring of children who are Electively Home Educated (EHE) and that a rise was being seen nationally. They were shown figures of the following:

- Children Missing from Education (CME) broke down by quadrants
- EHE broke down by quadrants
- A breakdown of school aged CME by district
- A breakdown of school aged EHE by district

Members were informed that currently parents who remove their child from school are not required to tell their Upper Tier Local Authority, they are not required to provide the school a reason for de-registering their child from a school, they did not have to have their EHE plans documented at the time of de-registering their child and they are not required to let an inspector come into their home to observe their EHE system.

The committee was advised that in the admissions process for schools, the Education Compliance Team of the County Council offered support for parents to navigate the appeals process to reduce the perception of alienation from the process by parents. Where there were schools with statistically unusually high numbers of children being deregistered, the Education Compliance Team would look to work with the school to address any issues leading to those de-registrations.

The meeting was informed that schools across Essex were signed up to support Young carers who otherwise could lose out on mainstream education. It was also the case that a Fair Access Protocol was in place for secondary school age children to facilitate them returning to mainstream schooling if a home schooling experience was not successful following a child being de-registered. With the consent of the Chairman, Councillors Ivan Henderson and Miles participated in the meeting due to their interest in the subject of enquiry.

During discussion the idea of recommending Cabinet to send a letter to the Department for Education to support Essex County Council's lobbying for increased powers for Upper Tier Local Authorities in respect of EHE. The advantage of circulating an email to all Tendring District Council Councillors to provide them with information on the issue of

those missing from education (drafted by Essex County Council) and with details of repeating routes was also discussed

The Committee thanked the guest speakers from Essex County Council for their work.

It was **RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND CABINET** to

- (1) Send a letter of support to the Secretary of State for Education for the introduction of the following powers/measure to safeguard the position of those de-registering from mainstream schools and opting for Elective Home Education (EHE);
- (a) The details of the proposed Elective Home Education should be documented and submitted to the Upper Tier Local Authority in advance of the child being de-registered.
- (b) That a backstop right of access for the Upper Tier Local Authority be provided to the home and to the child where Elective Home Education is provided with a view to confirming the position.
- (c) That Academies be urged to provide access on their sites in a locality for those being home schooled to undertake examinations close to home.
- (d) That parents of children being home schooled be required to provide regular updates to the Upper Tier Local Authority on the progress of the children being home schooled.
- (2) That an email be sent to all Tendring District Councillors, prepared by Essex County Council, to explain the position on those missing from mainstream education and the routes for reporting concerns about those children (which, if recommendation (1) above is also approved) could be accompanied by the letter to the Secretary of State as referred to in that recommendation.

The meeting was declared closed at 9.11 pm

Chairman

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

7:30 pm 9 May 2022

REPORT OF CLLR NEIL STOCK OBE, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

A.1 FREEPORT EAST

(Report prepared by Lee Heley, Corporate Director Projects Delivery)

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The report responds to the request of the Community Leadership Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme, which requested an update on:

- the progress of the proposals for Freeport East;
- specific measures on sites, and particularly on the Harwich site;
- impact of previous planning permissions being implemented;
- measures outside of the Freeport to harness the most from them into the local community; and
- the relationship with Thames Freeport.

BACKGROUND

Purpose of Freeports. The Government announced the formation of eight new Freeports with the aim that they become innovative hubs, boost global trade, attract inward investment and increase prosperity in the surrounding area by generating employment opportunities. Freeports offer tax and customs benefits to boost economic growth.

What Freeports offer. Freeports are secure customs zones located at ports where business can be carried out inside a country's land border, but where different customs rules apply. They can reduce administrative burdens and tariff controls, provide relief from duties and import taxes, and ease tax and planning regulations.

<u>Customs:</u> Typically, goods brought into a Freeport do not attract a requirement to pay duties until they leave the Freeport and enter the domestic market – and no duty at all is payable if they are re-exported. If raw materials are brought into a Freeport from overseas and processed into a final good before entering the domestic market, then duties will be paid on the final good. Freeports may also offer simplifications to the normal customs administrative processes on imported goods.

<u>Tax benefits</u>. Companies inside the sites pay lower property taxes on new buildings they buy (stamp duty land tax) and lower rates of national insurance for new staff they employ. In addition there is five years of Government funded rate relief to businesses that enter the tax site before 30 Sept 2026

<u>Supply chain</u>. Freeports also offer significant supply chain opportunities for businesses located in the wider geography outside the Freeport redline boundary.

Retained rates The council area in which the Freeport tax sites are located will retain 100 percent of the business rates growth above an agreed baseline within those sites. This income will be guaranteed for 25 years, giving a long term stream of local finance.

Retained business rate monies will be divided into three pots. The proposed pots are all funded from Retained Business Rates:

- Pot A is the existing rates funding calculated on the same basis as would currently apply
 to the distribution of rates. Pot A is distributed to local authorities to ensure they do not
 lose out from Freeport. Councils allocate this funding to their general fund and can spend
 it as they see fit.
- Pot B provides funding from retained business rates to support or accelerate development of a Tax Site if it is required. An application for funding from Pot B by Hutchinson Group Ltd could assist with the development of Bathside Bay. At present the detailed approach to distributing Pot B is yet to be determined.
- Pot C provides a fund for economic development within the sub-region, aligned to achieving the wider Freeport Policy objectives including investment in skills, innovation, levelling up, trade, investment, infrastructure, security and net zero carbon. This fund is administered by the lead authority, East Suffolk Council, and decisions on its use would be determined by the Freeport East Supervisory Board, of which Tendring District Council is a member. Projects would need to impact on the area within the Freeport boundary map. The size of pot C will depend on the requirements of Pot B (development of Freeport sites) and the time taken for the Tax Sites to be delivered and occupied.

The more development that takes within the Freeport sites, the more local rates are retained, the more local funding will become available.

DETAILED INFORMATION

Progress with the proposals for Freeport East.

- Throughout 2020, the Council worked with public and private sector partners on a bid to present the case for developing Freeport East as one of the Government's nominated Freeports.
- In the March 2021 Budget, Government announced the intention to designate sites in Essex and Suffolk as 'Freeport East'.
- At their meeting on April 2021, Cabinet received the initial Freeport East report, which set out the purpose of Freeports and the process and roadmap the public / private sector partnership would follow to receive formal designation by Government.
- The Council's Freeport East Portfolio Holder Working Party took place on the 2 September 2021 and agreed to support the Leader of the Council in providing a letter of support in respect of the Freeport East Outline Business Case.
- That Working Party also recommended that the Council pursue steps that
 Hutchinson Ports Ltd could undertake as part of its commitment to Harwich
 International Port, the skills agenda so the local population could take on careers
 that would become available as a consequence of Freeport East, and the need to
 actively pursue the improvements to the A120 from the A12 through to Harwich.

- In September 2021 Cabinet endorsed the urgent decision taken by the Leader of the Council, on behalf of the Cabinet, to provide a letter of support for the principles in regard to retained business rates generated within the Freeport East Tax Site, to accompany the Freeport East Outline Business Case, which was submitted to Government on 10 September 2021.
- On the 13 December 2021 the outline business case was formally approved by Government, the three tax sites in Felixstowe, Harwich and at Gateway 14 near Stowmarket were agreed, published on GOV.UK and Statutory Instruments laid to enshrine them in legislation.
- Tendring District Council supported the Freeport East Full Business Case at Cabinet in March 2022 and included Freeport East in its policy and budget framework at Full Council that month.
- East Suffolk Council as the Lead Authority, alongside Freeport East, submitted the Full Business Case (FBC) to Government for Freeport East on behalf of partners on 14 April 2022.
- Government will now respond to Freeport East's FBC, with the final Full Business Case to be agreed between Government and Freeport East by August 2022.

Government expects that Freeport Full Business Cases are 'official sensitive' as they contain commercial information, and so they have not been published.

Progress on specific issues:

Finance: The Full Business Case makes it clear that Tendring District Council will not be asked to provide direct funding or take on any financial or borrowing risk for the development of the Bathside Bay tax site.

The Council will develop a retained rates policy during 2022 to support the approach of Freeport to retaining rates locally and spending funding through Pots A, B and C.

Freeports are seeking more guidance from government on subsidy control, given the policy is designed to provide tax reliefs to private companies. Currently it is for the local billing authority to decide whether business rate reliefs should apply to new firms entering the Freeport tax sites.

Company: The Full Business Case proposes a Company Limited by Guarantee as the vehicle for decision making for Freeport East. Lawyers have a draft set of articles of association under discussion. The Company is expected to include current shadow board member organisations:

- Tendring District Council
- Essex County Council,
- Suffolk County Council,
- East Suffolk District Council,
- Mid Suffolk District Council,
- Essex University,
- Hutchison representative
- New Anglia LEP and South East LEPs

Recruitment: Recruitment to the position of Freeport East Chair and Chief Executive is currently underway. These roles will be paid for by the initial government funding to set up Freeport East, and in the longer term by <u>retained</u> rates flowing from the Freeport sites.

Page 7

Recruitment to the Freeport East staff team will follow the appointment of the Chief Executive.

Specific measures on the sites, particularly on the Harwich site

Freeport East is based around the Port of Felixstowe and Harwich International Port, and includes the Gateway 14 Site in Stowmarket, Suffolk. It comprises 275 hectares of space and facilities across three sites eligible for tax relief ("Tax Sites") at Felixstowe dock, Bathside Bay in Harwich, and Gateway 14. The Harwich Tax Site is intended to be developed as a Clean Energy Hub and create 1,900 jobs.

Freeport East has three main sites where tax benefits will accrue to companies expanding or moving in: Harwich, Felixstowe and Gateway 14.

Harwich Tax Site Green Energy Hub

This site will develop a cluster of organisations that are driving forward the future of clean energy generation, focusing on hydrogen and offshore wind.

The UK is the world's largest market for wind. Before 2030, £16bn of capital expenditure is anticipated in East Anglia ONE North, TWO and THREE, Norfolk Vanguard and Norfolk Boreas: 35 percent of total investment in offshore wind in the UK. Freeport East intends to develop a renewable energy supply chain that exploits Freeport East's unique position at the centre of this industry and helps to deliver 60 percent UK content for offshore wind.

This programme will be enhanced with innovation and skills initiatives that will support the local workforce to access these new roles and opportunities. The increase in employment land and high value jobs will aid justification for increased transport and housing developments and lead to a supporting service industry that will aid the wider regeneration of the local area.

Retained rates modelling was revised for the Full Business Case, based on live enquiries and industry demand. This modelling indicates there will be sufficient funding from retained rates to make development of the full Harwich tax site at Bathside Bay viable with income in the region of £125m over 25 years.

Felixstowe Tax Site

High value manufacturing, processing, and engineering hub to maximise the benefits being immediately adjacent to Felixstowe Port, the UK's gateway to Europe, Asia and the rest of the world. The investment into Felixstowe and its drive towards trialling innovative usages of hydrogen and new 'Internet of Things' technology will drive investment into Felixstowe and the wider area to support investment into housing, transport and skills facilities.

Gateway 14 Tax Site

The focus will be on innovative clients that align to the Net Zero vision for the site. High value logistics, manufacturing, research and development and professional services are the primary sectoral focus for the site. This will be enhanced with innovation and skills initiatives that will support the local workforce to access these new roles and opportunities. The increase in employment land and high value jobs will aid justification for increased transport and housing developments and lead to a supporting service industry that will aid the wider regeneration of the local area.

Combined tax and customs sites | Felixstowe (primary customs site and also a tax site); | Harwich (also a tax site) | Gateway 14 (also a tax site), Stowmarket Customs sites | Parker Avenue, in close proximity to the Port of Felixstowe | Clickett Hill Road, in close proximity to the Port of Felixstowe | Port One, Great Blakenham | Horsley Cross, Tendring.

Impact on previous planning permissions being implemented

The Council worked hard to take the Port's proposals to change pre-commencement conditions through the planning process, and to sensitively answer the comments of statutory consultees, to ensure their questions and concerns were responded to appropriately. As a result, the Port was able to start on site at Bathside Bay under the existing container port planning permission, locking in the original planning permission.

The impact of this start on site is to give planning certainty to Bathside Bay. It is from this position that a temporary change of use application can be submitted to the Council for a Clean Energy hub, which could last 25 years.

Measures outside of the Freeport to harness the most from them into the local community.

Skills The Council welcomes the skills development and employment opportunities that Freeport East will bring. The Council will work with partners to maximise skills opportunities leading to employment for our residents. The Council is working with Essex and Suffolk County Councils on a skills and employment plan within the Full Business Case that sets out how our interventions will maximise new labour market opportunities for residents.

Schools. Working with the Tendring Education Strategic Board and Essex County Council, Freeport East will establish what resources schools and other providers need to support the preparation of students for future jobs in Tendring and surrounding areas, review existing delivery models, and agree expected outcomes, next steps, budget and resource needs.

Skills proposal in the Full Business Case include:

Energy Skills Centre at Harwich - Phase 2: Improved facilities to support low carbon hydrogen technologies, fuel cells, carbon capture, and distribution. It will also include training for nuclear developments at Bradwell and Sizewell, based on project progression, and Harwich International Port.

Green Energy Skills Centre - Colchester Campus

This development is for Further Education and Technical courses supporting training needs for zero emission vehicles, battery storage, low and zero carbon technologies and green rapid mass transport systems, as cited by the Tendring Colchester Borders Garden Community Development Plan.

Sustainable Construction Training Centre - Colchester Campus

Scope to develop Further Education and Technical courses responding to high demand in skills shortage areas in modern methods of construction, retrofit, embodied carbon, renewable energies including solar panels and heat pumps and also the skills needed to support the large regional infrastructure and transport projects including two potential nuclear developments.

Transport: the development of Freeport East provides a strong justification when making arguments to Transport East and National Highways to promote the improvements to transport corridors on route to the Port. In addition, the temporary change of use to the planning permission from a container port to a Clean Energy Hub will include a transport component.

Links to the Thames Freeport. While Thames Freeport declined the opportunity for joint working on skills noting the competition between commercial Ports, Freeport East and Thames Freeport are part of the national network of Freeports. As such they receive regular advice and guidance from the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities. The Ports engage collectively with Government, for example to request more information on the national approach to subsidy control.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee determines whether it has any comments or recommendations it wishes to put forward the Leader or Cabinet.